
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

AGENDA 

November 26, 2013 

1



CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION November 26, 2013 
REGULAR MEETING   7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL 
 
 
ROLL CALL: FAKKEMA       WASINGER     
 

JENSEN       PETERSON          
    
   FIKSE        FREEMAN      
 
   SCHLECHT    
 
 
 Page 3 
1. Approval of Minutes – September 24, 2013 

 
2. Public Comment – Planning Commission will accept public comment for items not 

otherwise on the agenda for the first 15 minutes of the Planning Commission meeting. 
  
 Page 69 
3. MARIJUANA RELATED USES – CODE AMENDMENT PROJECT – Public Hearing 
 Staff will introduce the first draft code the Planning Commission in response to State law 
 changes pertaining to marijuana related uses.  Planning Commission will open the public 
 hearing and continue the public hearing to the December 10, 2013 business meeting.   
 
 Page 84 
4. TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PLAN (TIP) AMENDMENT – Public Hearing 
 An amendment is proposed to the TIP to include improvements to the waterfront trail.  

The Waterfront Trail in Oak Harbor is listed in several of the City’s plans, such as the 
Transportation Plan, Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan, for improvements.  
Listing the waterfront trail in the TIP allows the City to apply, qualify, and compete for 
grant money. 

 
 Page 88 
5. 2013 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS – Public Hearing 
 The Planning Commission will consider amending the Comprehensive Plan to include 

the Shoreline Master Program.  The Shoreline Master Program was part of the 2013 
Comprehensive Plan docket.  The 2013 Comprehensive Plan docket also included work 
on the 2016 Comprehensive Plan update, Land Use change to 1000 SE City Beach 
Street and a continuing study on scenic views, all of which will be continued into the 
2014 Comprehensive Plan docket. 

 
 Page 93 
6. 2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS – Public Meeting 
 The 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments will include the continuing work on the 

2016 Comprehensive Plan update.  The Planning Commission reviewed the scope of 
the updates and a public participation plan in 2013.  The scope of the 2016 update 
includes several items that will need to be considered in 2014 and 2015.  Land use 
changes and ongoing studies from 2013 will also be continued into 2014.  The deadline 
for private application for land use changes is December 2, 2013.  Any applications 
received will be considered during the 2014 Comprehensive Plan preliminary docket 
review process. 

 

2



MINUTES 

 

October 22, 2013 

3



 

Planning Commission 
October 22, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
October 22, 2013 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Keith Fakkema, Kristi Jensen, Bruce Freeman, Sandi Peterson, Greg 

Wasinger and Ana Schlecht 
Absent: David Fikse 
Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Senior Planner, 
Cac Kamak  

 
Chairman Fakkema called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  
 
MINUTES: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MS. JENSEN SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

APPROVE THE SEPTEMBER 24, 2013 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Billie Cook (651SE Bayshore Drive) thanked the Planning Commissioners for their service and 
complemented them on their professionalism, kindness, and attentiveness. 
 
MARIJUANA RELATED USES – CODE AMENDMENT PROJECT – Public Meeting 
Mr. Powers displayed a Power Point presentation (Attachment 1) and briefed the Planning 
Commission on the need to revise the Municipal Code in response to State law changes 
pertaining to marijuana related uses as well a preliminary research on this topic.  Mr. Powers 
spoke about background issues, moratorium regulations, City Council action to date, preliminary 
information, schedule and community involvement opportunities.   
 
Planning Commissioners had the following questions: 
 

 Is the Liquor Control Board in charge of both medical marijuana and recreational 
marijuana?  Mr. Powers explained that they are only in charge of recreational marijuana.  

 How is the 1,000 foot buffer measured?  Mr. Powers explained that is a straight line from 
property line to property line.  If a property is bisected by the buffer, that property is also 
precluded from medical and recreational marijuana licensing. 

 Does production licensing have to be non-residential?  Mr. Powers said that is up to the 
City as a community to decide. 

 How many licenses are allocated for Oak Harbor?  Mr. Powers said there is a total 
allocation of four retail licenses for Island County, one of which is for the City of Oak 
Harbor.    

 Does the Municipal Code prohibit any sort of agricultural activity in the City?  Mr. Powers 
believed that there are restrictions on certain types of food processing plants but not for 
just agricultural uses themselves.  Mr. Powers thought the Code was silent in that area. 

 Is there an allocation for production and processing?  Mr. Powers said from his reading, 
the State had not established a jurisdiction limit on production and processing but do 
have an overall limit on production and there are levels of production.  Most communities 
are addressing all three types of licenses in preparation for what the State may decide. 

 How does the City prohibit selling marijuana?  Mr. Powers said he wasn’t sure but there 
has been a court challenge to one of the communities that have prohibited it and he was 
not sure whether there was a decision yet. 

 

4



 

Planning Commission 
October 22, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 

There was discussion about the timing of the State issuance of licenses, the effect of the 
moratorium and the City’s schedule. 
 
Mr. Powers provided additional information (Attachment 2) and stated that staff will present a 
draft code at the next meeting based upon research and what other communities are doing in 
recognition of our existing zoning code structure.  
 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Mr. Kamak updated the Planning Commission on the continuing work and effort with the 2016 
Comprehensive Plan update.  Mr. Kamak reviewed the check list that was provided by the 
Department of Commerce for cities to use to determine if the city plans and regulations meet the 
requirements of the Growth Management Act (GMA).  Mr. Kamak also summarized the possible 
amendments and shared a draft public participation plan for the 2016 update.  
 
Mr. Fakkema asked if anyone wished to make public comment. 
 
Ann Brett (Island County resident) spoke about the flooding she has experienced on her 
property since three or four housing developments were been built near her property. She 
asked that the City think about the land owner that is going to be impacted. 
 
Angie Homola (Island County resident) thanked the Planning Commission for their work.  
Ms. Homola spoke about the importance of jurisdictions sharing the same methodology when 
making decisions about whether cities should enlarge their boundaries.  She also spoke about 
the City’s court challenge of the County’s decision regarding annexation before the Growth 
Management Hearings Board and Superior Court. 
 
ADJOURN:  8:30 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

5



Marijuana Related Uses -  
Code Amendment Project 

Planning Commission 

October 22, 2013 

Presentation Overview 

• Background
• Issues 
• Moratorium regulations
• City Council action to date
• Preliminary information
• Schedule 
• Community involvement opportunities

Background 

• Medical marijuana
• RCW 69.51A amended in 2011.
• Qualifying patients may create and participate in collective 

gardens for medical marijuana purposes.
• RCW 69.51A.140: Cities may regulate collective gardens 

through zoning, business licenses, health and safety 
regulations, etc. 

• Oak Harbor’s zoning and licensing regulations do not
adequately address this topic (business license only at this 
time). 

Background (cont.) 

• I-502
• Approved by voters on November 6, 2012. 
• Legalized (?) the production, sale and use of marijuana 

products purchased from State licensed stores for adults 
age twenty-one and over. 

• Washington State Liquor Control Board tasked with 
developing rules that will govern production, processing 
and retailing. 

• Rules adopted October 16, 2013; become final November 16,
2013. 

• Accept license applications from November 18-December 18, 
2013.  

• Licenses issued in March/April 2014? 

ATTACHMENT 1

6



Background (cont.)

• I-502 (cont.)

• Establishes certain limitations on the Liquor Control Board’s 
issuance of licenses. 

• No licenses for premises within 1,000 feet of any 
• elementary school or secondary school, 
• playground, 
• recreation facility, 
• child care center, 
• public park, 
• public transit center or library, or
• arcade.

• The State’s licensing regulations however will not address 
local zoning and other land use related issues. 

• Oak Harbor’s zoning and licensing regulations do not
adequately address I-502 (business license only at this time).

Background (cont.) 

• Medical and I-502 Marijuana
• Oak Harbor’s zoning and licensing regulations do not

adequately address either topic at this time 
•  (business license only). 

• New regulatory territory.
• Time needed to identify land use impacts before adoption 

of regulations or issuance of any business license.
• Staff recommended the City Council impose a moratorium

to preserve the status quo as necessary: 
• Provides opportunity to consider State’s final rules, and
• Allows City time to study, draft, hold public hearings and

adopt land use and/or licensing regulations.

Moratoria 

• Cities allowed to adopt under RCW 36.70A.390.

• Public hearing not required so long as one is conducted
within 60 days. 

• Findings of fact justifying the moratorium must be adopted
by the City Council. 

• May be effective for up to six months

– Up to one year with adoption of a work plan. 

• May be renewed for one or more six-month periods 

–  Requires a new public hearing and additional findings of fact. 

City Council 

• Staff briefed City Council at their workshop on 8/28/13

• Council adopted two ordinances on 9/3/13 imposing a six-
month moratorium on marijuana-related activities 

– These ordinances direct staff and the Planning Commission to work 
on regulations 

• Council conducted the required public hearings on both 
ordinances on 10/1/13 and kept the moratoriums in place

• Council requested staff return as quickly as possible with 
draft regulations 

ATTACHMENT 1

7



Additional Information 

• I-502 FAQs and news bulletins from AWC

• US Dept. of Justice memo

• Washington State Liquor Control Board (LCB) I-502 FAQs 

• MRSC I-502 ordinance comparison table

• MRSC article on medical marijuana reform

• LCB draft recommendations on merging medical marijuana 
and I-502 laws 

• MRSC Medical marijuana ordinances table

• Ordinances from Milton, Mukilteo (draft) and Tukwila

• Map of sensitive land uses and their 1,000 foot buffers

Schedule 

• 10/22/13 Planning Commission – Share Oak Harbor map (with 1000’ 
buffers around sensitive uses) and additional information; get 
preliminary feedback 

• 11/26/13 Planning Commission – Introduce draft code to PC (draft based 
on feedback from above meeting) and open public hearing 

•  12/10/13 Planning Commission – PC closes the public hearing and makes 
recommendation to CC 

• 1/22/14 City Council – Brief CC on PC work and recommendation

• 2/4/14  City Council – CC considers draft ordinance

• 2/18/14 City Council – CC considers draft ordinance (if necessary)

Community Involvement 

• Planning Commission meetings and hearings

• City Council hearings 

• Provide written comments on SEPA checklist/decision

• Provide written comments to staff

• Call or talk to staff

• Contact us!
– (360) 279-4511

– spowers@oakharbor.org 

• Meeting notices 

– http://www.oakharbor.org 

ATTACHMENT 1

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



Marijuana Related Uses 

Code Amendment Project 

 

Public Hearing 

 

69



 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Marijuana code staff report.doc 

 Date: November 26, 2013  

 Subject: Marijuana Related Uses – Code 

Amendment Project  
 

 

 

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director 

  

 

PURPOSE 

This report presents a draft ordinance for the Planning Commission’s consideration.  The draft 

ordinance establishes the zoning districts and standards associated with marijuana related uses as 

allowed by I-502. 

 

BACKGROUND 

Last month staff provided the Planning Commission background information on recent State 

laws pertaining to medical and recreational marijuana.  In short, the information summarized 

actions at the State level, advised the Planning Commission that the City Council had enacted 

two moratorium ordinances intended to provide the City time to respond to these laws (through 

the drafting of development and licensing regulations) and presented a tentative schedule for 

completing the work.  Staff also presented a preliminary map depicting 1,000 foot buffers applied 

around those sensitive land uses identified by I-502. 

 

This month staff presents a revised map, the results of a zoning code review intended to help 

determine similarities between existing uses and marijuana related uses (and the zoning districts 

they may locate in), and an initial draft ordinance. 

 

DISCUSSION 

Staff’s approach to preparing the initial draft ordinance to regulate those uses approved by I-502 

included the following:  

 

 applying the State required 1,000 foot buffer around sensitive uses to Oak Harbor’s land 

use geography;  

 reviewing Oak Harbor’s zoning code to determine which uses may be similar from a land 

use impact perspective to the new marijuana related uses (as a means to begin to establish 

which zoning districts may be appropriate to locate those uses); and 

 reviewing codes from other communities to see how they have addressed marijuana 

related uses and apply those concepts to Oak Harbor. 

 

Updated Preliminary Map 

The preliminary map has been updated since the October Planning Commission meeting.  For the 

 

City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission Report 
 

70



 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Marijuana code staff report.doc 

updated map staff eliminated properties that were either fully or partially contained within the 

1,000 foot buffer radius.  For the partially contained parcels, if a portion of a property fell within 

this distance the entire parcel was deemed to be unavailable for the possible siting of a marijuana 

related use.  The updated map also ‘whites out’ all parcels zoned any of the Residential districts, 

and the Public Facilities and Open Space districts as the draft code assumes these zoning districts 

will not be considered as possible locations.  The updated map (Attachment 1) shows the areas 

encumbered by the various buffers and that in general the northern portion of Oak Harbor has the 

most properties available for marijuana related uses. 

 

Zoning Code Review 

Staff reviewed the current zoning code to determine where marijuana related uses might locate, 

based on matching their basic land use characteristic with existing uses in the City’s various 

zoning districts.  The results of this review are shown in a table (see Attachment 2). 

 

The ‘Similar or Related Uses’ columns of the table display those existing uses in the zoning code 

(principal permitted, conditional or accessory) that are similar or related from a land use 

perspective only to the three categories of marijuana related uses (production, processing and 

retailing).  Examples include greenhouses as a conditional use in the R-1 zoning district (similar 

to marijuana production) and retail bakery in the C-1 zoning district (similar to marijuana 

retailing). 

 

The X’s in the ‘Marijuana Related Uses’ columns of the table signify which zoning district each 

of the three categories of marijuana related uses (production, processing and retailing) could be 

located in when evaluated from a land use perspective only.  This evaluation does not address 

appropriateness of the use in the zoning district or take into account any potential negative 

impacts of the proposed uses; it is merely a ‘does it fit’ evaluation.  Please note the X’s in the 

columns do not represent a recommendation that the marijuana related use should be included in 

that district’s permitted, conditional or accessory uses. 

 

Codes from Other Cities 

In researching approaches to drafting the code, staff reviewed codes from the following cities: 

Aberdeen, Burien, Milton, Monroe, Mukilteo, Normandy Park, Redmond, Seattle, Spokane, 

Tacoma and Tukwila.  Concepts and language from some of these codes were used in preparing 

the initial draft. 

 

The Draft Code 

The draft code contains a list of appropriate definitions, the standards for locating a marijuana 

production, processing or retailing facility, and the development standards applicable to each 

facility.  After reviewing the information noted above, and only as a means to start the 

community conversation, staff drafted the initial ordinance using the following zoning districts 

71



 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Marijuana code staff report.doc 

for the various marijuana related uses: 

 

 Production: Planned Industrial Park and Industrial 

 Processing: Planned Industrial Park and Industrial 

 Retailing: C-4 and Industrial 

 

A variety of development standards are recommended as a means to limit potential negative 

impacts from these uses.  In addition to these unique standards, each facility will be required to 

meet the standards of the underlying zoning district and all other applicable Municipal Code 

regulations. 

 

The initial draft ordinance is of course subject to change as part of the public review process.  

Please also note that the draft is still undergoing staff review and it is possible that staff may 

suggest revisions to it as well. 

 

Medical Marijuana 

The State Legislature has directed the LCB to work with the Departments of Health and Revenue 

to clarify the interaction between the medical marijuana law and I-502.  With this effort in 

progress staff believes it is appropriate to delay drafting a medical marijuana code at this time.  

Once the State determines how (or if) the two bodies of law are integrated the City could modify 

this draft code or draft a separate one as necessary. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 Open public hearing, accept public testimony, provide feedback to staff and continue the 

hearing to December 10, 2013. 

  

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Updated preliminary map 

2. Zoning district comparison table 

3. Draft ordinance 

72





ATTACHMENT 2 
 

 

 
Marijuana Related Uses and Zoning Code Similar or Related Uses Comparison 

 

Zoning District Similar or Related Uses1 Marijuana Related Uses2 
 Principal Permitted Use Conditional Use Accessory Use Marijuana 

Production 
Marijuana 
Processing 

Marijuana 
Retailing 

PRE 
Planned 
Residential 
Estate 

None None 

Accessory uses 
and structures - 
greenhouses 

X   

R-1  
Single-family 
Residential 

None 

Nursery and 
landscape material, 
including 
greenhouses 

Accessory uses 
and structures - 
greenhouses 

X   

R-2 
Limited Multiple-
family 
Residential 

None 

Any conditional use 
permitted in an R-1 
district 

Accessory uses 
and structures - 
greenhouses 

X   

R-3 
Multiple-family 
Residential 

None 
Any conditional use 
permitted in an R-2 
district 

Accessory uses 
and structures - 
greenhouses 

X   

R-4  
Multiple-family 
Residential 

None 
Any conditional use 
permitted in an R-3 
district 

Accessory uses 
and structures - 
greenhouses 

X   

RO 
Residential 
Office 

None 
Any conditional use 
permitted in an R-4 
district 

Accessory uses 
and structures - 
greenhouses 

X   

                                                           
1
 The ‘Similar or Related Uses’ columns display those existing uses in the zoning code that have land use characteristics similar to the marijuana 

related uses. 
 
2
 The X’s in the ‘Marijuana Related Uses’ columns signify which zoning district each of the three categories of marijuana related uses could be 

located in when evaluated from a land use perspective only. This evaluation does not take into account any secondary or negative impacts; it 
merely matches the marijuana related uses to an existing zoning district.  

74



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

 

Zoning District Similar or Related Uses1 Marijuana Related Uses2 
 Principal Permitted Use Conditional Use Accessory Use Marijuana 

Production 
Marijuana 
Processing 

Marijuana 
Retailing 

C-1  
Neighborhood 
Commercial 

Retail uses including: 
•Bakery, retail only; 
•Dairy products, retail 
only; 
•Florist shop; 
•Garden supplies and 
horticultural nursery, 
not including 
greenhouses; 

Nursery and 
landscape material 
including 
greenhouses 

None X  X 

CBD  
Central Business 
District 

Retail uses including: 
•Bakery, retail only ; 
•Confectionery store; 
•Gift shop ; 
•Pharmacy and drug 
store ; 
•Variety store  

None None   X 

C-3  
Community 
Commercial 

Retail uses including: 
•Any principal use 
permitted in a C-1 and 
CBD district; 
•Nursery and landscape 
material including 
greenhouses 

Conditional uses 
permitted in a C-1 
and CBD district 

None X  X 

C-4  
Highway Service 
Commercial 

Farm and garden 
supplies, plant nurseries None None X  X 

75



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

 

Zoning District Similar or Related Uses1 Marijuana Related Uses2 
 Principal Permitted Use Conditional Use Accessory Use Marijuana 

Production 
Marijuana 
Processing 

Marijuana 
Retailing 

C-5  
Highway 
Corridor 
Commercial 

Retail uses including: 
•Any principal use 
permitted in a C-1; 
•Nursery and landscape 
material including 
greenhouses 

Conditional uses 
permitted in a C-1 
and CBD district 

None X  X 

PBP 
Planned Business 
Park 

Manufacturing, 
processing and 
packaging of food, 
pharmaceuticals 

None None  X  

PIP 
Planned 
Industrial Park 

•Manufacturing, 
processing and 
packaging of food, 
pharmaceuticals 
•Nursery and landscape 
material including 
greenhouses 

Small businesses 
specializing in the 
production of 
chemical products None X X  

I  
Industrial 

•Principal uses 
permitted in a C-3 
district; 
•Food and drug 
processing 

•Any conditional use 
permitted in a C-3 
district; 
•Produce stand 

None X X X 

PF 
Public Facilities 

None None None    

OS 
Open Space 

Agriculture land 
None None X   

 

76



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 1 of 7 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code.docx 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

WHEREAS, the voters of Washington State approved Initiative 502 (I-502) in November 2012 

legalizing, taxing and regulating the recreational use of marijuana, codified in Chapter 69.50 

RCW ; and  

 

WHEREAS, under I-502, the Washington State Liquor Control Board (LCB) was tasked with 

the responsibility to adopt the rules governing the licensing and operations of marijuana 

producers, processors, and retailers, and the rules went into effect on Nov. 16, 2013; and  

 

WHEREAS, on August 29, 2013, the U.S. Department of Justice distributed a guidance memo to 

U.S. Attorneys regarding state implementation of recreational marijuana ballot measures and 

setting forth the federal government enforcement priorities, essentially acknowledging that as 

long as state regulation and enforcement is sufficiently robust and consistent with federal 

priorities, the federal government may choose not to interfere; and  

 

WHEREAS, the 1,000-foot separations required by I-502 and included in the adopted licensing 

rules are about protecting children, which the City Council and the citizens of Oak Harbor 

support; and 

 

WHEREAS, the LCB has created three categories of state licenses and prohibits holders of a 

retail license from also holding a production or processing license;   

 

WHEREAS, the establishment of marijuana related uses without appropriate regulations could 

lead to negative impacts to the community, including but not necessarily limited to: 

1. Conversion of residential uses into cannabis cultivation and processing facilities 

removing valuable housing stock from the community. 

2. Degraded neighborhood aesthetics due to shuttered-up homes, offensive odors, increased 

nighttime traffic, and parking. 

3. Environmental damages from chemicals being discharged into surrounding and off-site 

soils, and into storm and sanitary sewer systems. 

4. Risk of fire hazard due to overloaded service connections used to operate grow lights and 

fans. 

5. Illegal structural modifications. 

 

WHEREAS, an undue concentration of licensed marijuana facilities in the City of Oak Harbor 

could be detrimental to the quality of life of Oak Harbor residents and the economic well-being 

of the city; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Oak Harbor City Council deems it to be in the public interest to establish zoning 

regulations related to state-licensed marijuana facilities and to require all such facilities to obtain 

a City of Oak Harbor business license; and   

 

77



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 2 of 7 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code.docx 

WHEREAS, the intent to amend development regulations to allow state-licensed marijuana 

facilities and a SEPA Determination of Non Significance were noticed in accordance with city of 

Oak Harbor procedures and regulations; and  

 

WHEREAS, a Determination of Non Significance was issued on __ ______ 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor Planning Commission held a public hearing on November 

26, 2013 and December 10, 2013 to consider this ordinance and forwarded a recommendation to 

the City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak City Council held a public hearing on _______, 2013 to consider 

this ordinance; and  

 

WHEREAS, nothing in this Ordinance is intended, nor shall be construed, to authorize or 

approve violation of federal or state law; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor do ordain as follows: 

 

Section One.  There is hereby added a new Chapter 19.22 to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code 

which shall have the following title and sections: 

 

Chapter 19.22 

MARIJUANA RELATED USES 

 

Sections:  

19.22.010  Purpose and Intent 

19.22.020  Definitions 

19.22.030  Locations Allowed 

19.22.040  Development Standards 

19.22.050  Non-conforming Use 

 

Section Two.   

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.010 entitled “Purpose and Intent” to the Oak Harbor 

Municipal Code to read as follows: 

 

The production, processing and retailing of marijuana is and remains illegal under federal law.  

Nothing herein or as provided elsewhere in the ordinances of the City of Oak Harbor is an 

authorization to circumvent federal law or provide permission to any person or entity to violate 

federal law.  Only state-licensed marijuana producers, marijuana processors, and marijuana 

retailers may locate in the City of Oak Harbor and then only pursuant to a license issued by the 

State of Washington.  The purposes of these provisions is solely to acknowledge the enactment 

by Washington voters of Initiative 502 and state licensing procedure and to permit to, but only 

to, the extent required by state law marijuana producers, marijuana processors, and marijuana 

retailers to operate in designated zones of the City.  These provisions are intended to mitigate 

potential impacts of marijuana related uses on nearby properties and the community and to 

78



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 3 of 7 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code.docx 

promote the public health, safety and welfare through the application of appropriate locational 

criteria and development standards.   

 

Section Three. 

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.020 entitled “Definitions” to the Oak Harbor 

Municipal Code to read as follows: 

 

(1) “Child care center” means an entity that regularly provides child day care, preschool and 

early learning services for a group of children for periods of less than twenty-four hours 

licensed by the Washington state department of early learning under Chapter 170-295 

WAC. Child care centers include: Commercial Day Care, “Family Day Care” and “Day 

Nursery” entities. 

 

(2) “Game arcade” means an entertainment venue featuring primarily video games, 

simulators, and/or other amusement devices. 

 

(3) “Library” means an organized collection of resources made accessible to the public 

for reference or borrowing supported with money derived from taxation. 

 

(4) “Marijuana” or “Cannabis” means all parts of the plant Cannabis, whether growing or 

not, with a THC concentration greater than 0.3 percent on a dry weight basis; the seeds 

thereof; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound, 

manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds or resin. The 

term does not include the mature stalks of the plant, fiber produced from the stalks, oil 

or cake made from the seeds of the plant, any other compound, manufacture, salt, 

derivative, mixture, or preparation of the mature stalks (except the resin extracted there 

from), fiber, oil, or cake, or the sterilized seeds of the plant which is incapable of 

germination. 

 

(5) “Marijuana facility” means a state-licensed marijuana production, processing, or 

retail facility or a medical cannabis collective garden. Marijuana facilities shall not 

be a home occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 -Definitions and as authorized 

under OHMC 19.34. 

 

(6) “Marijuana-infused products” means products that contain marijuana or marijuana 

extracts and are intended for human use. The term “marijuana-infused products” does 

not include useable marijuana. 

 

(7) “Marijuana processing facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington to 

process, package, and label usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products for sale 

at wholesale to marijuana retailers.  A marijuana processing facility shall not be a home 

occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under OHMC 

19.34. 

 

(8) “Marijuana processor” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 

process marijuana into useable marijuana and marijuana-infused products, package and 

79



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 4 of 7 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code.docx 

label useable marijuana and marijuana-infused products for sale in retail outlets, and 

sell usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products at wholesale to marijuana 

retailers. 

 

(9) “Marijuana producer” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 

produce and sell marijuana at wholesale to marijuana processors and other marijuana 

producers. 

 

(10) “Marijuana production facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington 

to produce marijuana for sale at wholesale to marijuana processor licensees and to 

other marijuana producers. A marijuana production facility shall not be a home 

occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under OHMC 

19.34. 

 

(11) “Marijuana retailer” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 

sell usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products in a retail outlet. 

 

(12) “Marijuana retail facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington to 

sell only usable marijuana, marijuana-infused products and marijuana paraphernalia 

to persons twenty-one years of age and older. A marijuana retail facility shall not be 

a home occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under 

OHMC 19.34. 

 

(13) “Playground” means a public outdoor recreation area for children, usually equipped 

with swings, slides, and other playground equipment, owned and/or managed by a 

city, county, state, or federal government. 

 
(14) “Recreation center or facility” means a supervised center that provides a broad range of 

activities and events including programming for persons under twenty-one years of age, 

owned and/or managed by a charitable nonprofit organization, city, county, state, or 

federal government.  Examples include, but are not limited to, the John Vanderzicht 

Memorial Pool and Oak Harbor Boy's & Girl's Club. 

 

(15) “Retail outlet” means a location licensed by the State Liquor Control Board for the retail 

sale of usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products. 

 

(16) “Useable marijuana” means dried marijuana flowers. The term “usable marijuana” does not 

include marijuana-infused products. 

  

Section Four. 

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.030 entitled “Locations Allowed” to the Oak Harbor 

Municipal Code to read as follows: 

 

(1) State licensed marijuana producers and marijuana processors may locate in the city 

pursuant to the following restrictions: 

 

80



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 5 of 7 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code.docx 

 (a) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors must comply with all requirements 

 of state law and the Washington State Liquor Control Board’s regulations. 

 (b) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors may locate only in the Planned  

 Industrial Park or Industrial district(s). 

 (c) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not locate on a site or in a 

building in which non-conforming production or processing uses have been 

established in any zone other than the Planned Industrial Park or Industrial 

district(s). 

 (d) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not operate as an accessory 

 to a primary use or as a home occupation. 

 (e) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not locate within one 

 thousand feet of the perimeter of the grounds of any elementary or secondary 

 school, playground, recreation center or facility, child care center, public park, 

 public transit center, or library, or any game arcade admission to which is not 

 restricted to persons aged twenty-one years or older. 

 

(2) State licensed marijuana retailers may locate in the city pursuant to the following 

restrictions: 

 

 (a) Marijuana retailers must comply with all requirements of state law and the 

 Washington State Liquor control Board’s regulations. 

 (b) Marijuana retailers may locate only in the C-4 and Industrial district(s). 

 (c) Marijuana retailers shall not locate in a building in which non-conforming retail 

uses have been established in any residential or office zone. 

 (e) Marijuana retailers shall not operate as an accessory to a primary use or as a home 

 occupation. 

 (f) Marijuana retailers shall not locate within one thousand feet of the perimeter of 

 the grounds of any elementary or secondary school, playground, recreation center 

 or facility, child care center, public park, public transit center, or library, or any 

 game arcade admission to which is not restricted t persons aged twenty-one years 

 or older. 
 
Section Five. 

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.040 entitled “Development Standards” to the Oak 

Harbor Municipal Code to read as follows: 
 
(1) Marijuana retail, processing and production facilities.  In addition to the standards of the 

underlying zoning district and all other applicable Municipal Code regulations, all state-
licensed marijuana facilities shall meet the following development standards: 

 (a) All facilities must be state-licensed and comply with all of the standards for 

 state licensed marijuana facilities. 

 (b) No marijuana facility shall be allowed as a home occupation. 

 (c) The definitions set forth in RCW 69.50.101-.102, WAC 314-55-010 and OHMC 

  Section 19.22.020 shall control. In the event of conflict, the provisions of OHMC  

 shall prevail. 

 (d) Location. 

  (i) No more than one facility shall be located on a single parcel. 

81



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 6 of 7 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code.docx 

(ii) Marijuana retail and processing facilities shall be located fully within a  

 permanent structure designed to comply with the city building code and  

 constructed under a building/tenant improvement permit from the city 

 regardless of the size or configuration of the structure. 

(iii) Marijuana production facilities shall be located: 

(A) Fully within a permanent structure designed to comply with the 

city building code and constructed under a building/tenant 

improvement permit from the city regardless of the size or 

configuration of the structure; or 

(B) In non-rigid greenhouses, other structures, or an expanse of open 

or clear ground fully enclosed by a physical barrier enclosed by a 

sight obscuring wall or fence eight (8) feet high. 

(iv) Marijuana facilities shall not be located in a mobile structure. 
(v) No state-licensed marijuana facility shall be located within 1,000 feet of 

the perimeter of the parcel on which any of the entities listed below are 
located. The distance shall be measured in the manner set forth in WAC 
314-55-050(10). 

(A) Elementary or secondary school (public or private); 

(B) Playground; 

(C) Recreation center or facility; 

(D) Child care center; 

(E) Public park; 

(F) Public transit center; 

(G) Library; 

(H) Any game arcade which allows admission to persons under 21 

years of age. 

(vi)  No state-licensed marijuana retail facility shall be located within 1,000 feet 

of the perimeter of a parcel on which a state-licensed marijuana 

production or processing facility or medical cannabis collective garden is 

located nor shall a state-licensed marijuana production or processing 

facility be located within 1,000 feet of the perimeter of a parcel on which 

a state-licensed marijuana retail facility or medical cannabis collective 

garden is located. The distance shall be measured in the manner set forth in 

WAC 314-55-050(10). 

(e) No production, processing or delivery of marijuana may be visible to the public 

 nor may it be visible through windows. 

(f) Marijuana retail uses shall not include drive-throughs, exterior, or off-site sales. 

(g) All fertilizers, chemicals, gases and hazardous materials shall be handled in 

compliance with all applicable local, state and federal regulations. No fertilizers, 

chemicals, gases or hazardous materials shall be allowed to enter neither a 

sanitary sewer or stormwater sewer system nor be released into the atmosphere 

outside of the structure where the facility is located. 

(h) No odors shall be allowed to migrate beyond the interior portion of the structure 

where a marijuana facility is located. 

(i) A City of Oak Harbor business license pursuant to Chapter 5.03 OHMC and a 

state license pursuant to Chapter 314-55 WAC shall be obtained prior to the start 

of operations of the facility. 

(j) All facilities shall comply with Chapter 19.27 RCW, State Building Code Act 

82



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 7 of 7 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code.docx 

a n d  T i t l e  17  B uildings. Appropriate permits shall be obtained for all changes 

of use, tenant improvements, mechanical system improvements, electrical 

upgrades and similar work. 

 

Section Five. 

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.040 entitled “Non-conforming Uses” to the Oak 

Harbor Municipal Code to read as follows: 

 

(1) No use that constitutes or purports to be a marijuana producer, marijuana processor, or 

marijuana retailer as those terms are defined in this ordinance, that was engaged in that 

activity prior to the enactment of this ordinance shall be deemed to have been a legally 

established use under the provisions of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code and that us shall 

not be entitled to claim legal non-conforming status. 
 

Section Six.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 

circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision 

to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

 

Section Seven.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after 

publishing. 

 

PASSED by the City Council this ______ day of ___________________ 2013. 

 

       CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

       _______________________________ 

       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

       

Attest:       Approved as to Form: 

 

________________________   _______________________________ 

Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk    Grant K. Weed, Interim City Attorney 

 

    

Published: _______________ 

83



Transportation Improvement 

Program 

(TIP) 

Amendment 

Public Hearing 

84



 

 

Page 1 of 2 

Date:             

Subject:  Six-Year Transportation  

   Improvement Program 

 

 

FROM: Cac Kamak, Senior Planner 

 

 

PURPOSE:   

The Planning Commission is requested to hold a public hearing to consider an amendment to 

Oak Harbor’s 2014-2019 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) to include improvements 

to the Waterfront Trail and make a recommendation to the City Council for consideration and 

adoption. 

 

DISCUSSION 

The City adopts a six-year TIP every year in July in accordance to state law.  The primary 

purpose of the TIP is to facilitate use of Federal transportation funds awarded to the City.  

Projects that have federal funding must appear in the six-year TIP at the local and state level so 

that the City can obligate and eventually use the federal funds. The projects listed on the TIP are 

coordinated with those listed in the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan.   

 

The Planning Commission is requested to consider an amendment to include the Waterfront Trail 

in the TIP.  The Waterfront Trail is included in several of the City’s plans such as the Parks, 

Recreation and Open Space Plan and the Transportation Plan.  These plans indicate the 

importance of the Waterfront Trail to the community and the enhancement of it as a non-

motorized trail that serves transportation and recreational needs of the community. Including the 

Waterfront Trail in the TIP provides an opportunity to consider improvements to it when federal 

grant monies are available. 

 

The City’s Waterfront Trail can benefit from improvements such as, but not limited to, 

informational kiosks, scenic overlooks, erosion control and shoreline enhancement with native 

vegetation.  Some of these improvements can be funded with grant money available through 

Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) funds.  TAP funds are federal dollars that are 

distributed regionally through the State and the Regional Transportation Planning Organizations 

(RTPO).  Since the Waterfront Trail is one of the most used trails in the City and can benefit 

from upgrades and enhancements, it would be wise to include it in the TIP and position it for a 

better opportunity to qualify for grants.  Most grant programs are competitive and inclusions of 

the project in the appropriate plans can provide an edge for funding. 

 

The city is applying for grants to improve sections of the Waterfront Trail along the VFW park 

where a recent landslide has diverted the trail.  There are also long standing plans to provide 

informational kiosk along the waterfront.  Including the Waterfront Trail improvements in the 

TIP will help the project qualify and compete with other projects from Island County, Island 

Transit, Coupeville, Langley and Skagit County. 

City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission 

85



 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. Conduct a public hearing. 

2. Recommend the amendment to include Waterfront Trail improvements into the 2014-

2019 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)  

 

86



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

Y Inside N Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

be r

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

00 9 WA-06418 28 C G P S T 
W

2.090 CE No

Waterfront Trail Enhancement Project

Waterfront Trail

Oak Harbor Marina to SW Scenic Heights St

New sidewalk, way-finding information, landscaping, historic and environmental 
education.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2014 STP(R) 31,242 0 4,876 36,118

P PE 2015 STP(R) 25,950 0 4,050 30,000

P CN 2014 STP(R) 103,800 0 16,200 120,000

P CN 2016 STP(R) 103,800 0 16,200 120,000

P CN 2017 STP(R) 167,708 0 26,174 193,882

Totals 432,500 0 67,500 500,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 36,188 30,000 0 0 0

CN 0 120,000 120,000 193,822 0

Totals 36,188 150,000 120,000 193,822 0

Federal Funds State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

Grand Totals for Oak Harbor 432,500 0 67,500 500,000

Report Date: November 21, 2013 Page 1

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2014 to 2019

87



2013 Comprehensive Plan  

Update 

 

Public Hearing 

 

88



 City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission 

 

  Bill No. _______________________ 

  Date:    November 26, 2013 

Subject:  2013 Comprehensive Plan 

Amendments    

 

FROM:     Cac Kamak, AICP 

  Senior Planner 
 

       
 
PURPOSE  
This memo presents the 2013 Comprehensive Plan Amendments.  The 2013 Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment Docket included the Shoreline Master Program (SMP), Land Use change for 1000 SE 

City Beach Street, 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update process and continuation of the Scenic View 

Study.     

 

The Planning Commission is requested to open a public hearing at the November 26
th

 meeting and 

take public testimony on any 2013 Comprehensive Plan Amendment docket items.  Since the work 

done in 2013 did not result in actual amendments to the City’s Comprehensive Plan, no action is 

required to amend the Plan.  However, the Planning Commission is recommended to continue some of 

the docket items into 2014.    

 

BACKGROUND 

The City Council approved the docket for the 2013 Comprehensive Plan Amendments on March 5, 

2013 (Attachment 1).  The docket included a land use amendment for 1000 SE City Beach Street, 

adoption of the Shoreline Master Program, continued work on the Scenic View study and initiating the 

2016 Comprehensive Plan update process.     

 

The major focus in 2013 was to initiate and review the 2016 Comprehensive Plan update requirements 

and determine the scope along with a Public Participation Plan (PPP).  The Shoreline Master Program 

was locally approved by the City Council in 2012 and was forwarded to the Department of Ecology 

(DOE) for their review.  DOE reviewed the SMP in 2013 and provided some minor comments.  These 

comments have been addressed by staff and the SMP is ready for adoption by the City Council in 

December.   

 

A couple of the docket items (1000 SE City Beach Street and Scenic View study)  will be continued 

into the 2014 docket and will remain until there is further action. 1000 SE City Beach Street is 

currently designated High Density Residential.  The city owns this property and will therefore not be 

developed as residential uses.  The future designation of this property is yet to be determined.  Once 

the future use of this property is determined, the land use designation can be changed.  The scenic 

view study will also be carried over to the 2014 docket.  Further work will be done as resources 

become available. 

 

DISCUSSION 

Scope  and Public Participation Plan (PPP) for the 2016 Update 

The majority of the work done in 2013 regarding comprehensive plan amendments was focused on the 

2016 update.  The 2016 update is a large undertaking and the Planning Commission reviewed the 

scope of the updates and a PPP.  The review of the scope and the PPP does not result necessarily in an 

89



 City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission 

 

amendment/action to the existing Comprehensive Plan since it is an initial step towards amendments 

and updates to the Plan.  Therefore, there is no specific action required at this time to incorporate the 

review and PPP.   

 

The PPP is an important piece of the 2016 update and outlines the procedures for early and continuous 

public participation in the update process.  Though the PPP is not an amendment to the 

Comprehensive Plan it can be adopted by resolution as an integral part of the 2016 update process.  

Adopting the PPP can be done outside of the Comprehensive Plan amendment process.  Staff 

anticipates bringing it forward to Planning Commission in January 2014 for formal action.   

 

Shoreline Master Program (SMP) 

RCW 90.58.050 requires each jurisdiction to have a Shoreline Master Program for managing its 

shoreline. RCW 90.58.080 requires that Oak Harbor update its Shoreline Master Program by 

December 1, 2012.  Oak Harbor updated its SMP in 2012 and forwarded it for review to DOE.  DOE 

has reviewed Oak Harbor’s SMP and suggested minor modification.  The SMP has been updated with 

the suggested changes and is ready for adoption.   

 

RCW 36.70A.480 states that “The goals and policies of a shoreline master program for a county or 

city approved under chapter 90.58 RCW shall be considered an element of the county or city's 

comprehensive plan”.  It also states that “The shoreline master program shall be adopted pursuant to 

the procedures of chapter 90.58 RCW rather than the goals, policies, and procedures set forth in this 

chapter for the adoption of a comprehensive plan or development regulations”.  Based on this, the 

adoption of the Shoreline Master Program by the City Council will automatically incorporate the SMP 

into the City’s comprehensive plan and therefore a separate action is not required. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Based on the above, there is no specific action necessary at this time to amend the Comprehensive 

Plan document.  The Planning Commission is recommended to hold a hearing and take any comments 

from the public on items that are currently on the 2013 Comprehensive Plan Amendment docket.  The 

Planning Commission is recommended to continue the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update, Land Use 

change for 1000 SE City Beach Street and the Scenic View Study and include it in the Preliminary 

Docket for the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments.   

 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. 2013 Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket. 

 
 

90

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=90.58
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=90.58


91



92



2014 Comprehensive Plan  

Update 

 

Public Meeting 

 

93



  

 

FROM: Cac Kamak, AICP  

Senior Planner 

   

 

 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this memo is to provide a framework for discussing the Preliminary
1
 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment docket for 2014. 

 

BACKGROUND 

The 2013 docket for the city’s Comprehensive Plan Amendments included the Shoreline 

Master Program (SMP), Land Use change for 1000 SE City Beach Street, 2016 

Comprehensive Plan Update process and continuation of the Scenic View Study. Most of 

the focus in 2013 was on the 2016 Update process to determine the scope of the update 

and to also formulate a Public Participation Plan. As described in the memo to Planning 

Commission on the 2013 amendments, the Shoreline Master Program that was being 

reviewed by DOE in 2013 is being considered separately for adoptions in accordance 

with RCW 90.58.050 and the.  The land use change to 1000 SE City Beach Street and the 

scenic view study have been recommended for continuation. 

 

As a refresher for the Planning Commission, the process of amending the City’s 

comprehensive plan as outlined in Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 18.12 is 

summarized below. 

     

Process 

In accordance with OHMC 18.12.040, the preliminary docket is compiled each year with 

input from the public and the Planning Commission.  This is done prior to a December 1
st
 

deadline. The intent of compiling the preliminary docket prior to December 1
st
 is to 

provide public notice of the preliminary docket.  The preliminary docket is advertised in 

the local newspaper paper and the City’s website.  The Planning Commission then 

reviews the preliminary docket at its regular meeting in December and January and 

forwards it with a recommendation to the City Council before January 31
st
.  The City 

Council then reviews it in February/March and approves a final docket for the year before 

March 31
st
. 

 

Docket items 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Code provides some direction on amendments that can be 

considered for a docket.  The three types of amendments that can be placed on a docket 

are Sponsored, Mandated and Discretionary.  These amendments are defined in OHMC 

18.50.050 (3).   

 

                                                           
1
 The docket is considered “preliminary” until the City Council approves it.  After approval, it is referred to 

as “final” or “annual”. 

Date: __November 26, 2013 

Subject: Comprehensive Plan 

Amendments – Discussion of 

items for 2014 Docket   

City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission Report 

94



  

Sponsored Amendments 

These are amendments that are proposed through an application process that is 

open to the general public.  Sponsored amendments can either be private or 

public.  An example of a private amendment is a request for changes to land use 

designations for private property that result in a change to the Future Land Use 

Map in the Comprehensive Plan.  These are the most commonly received 

applications.  The City has not received any applications to date but the deadline 

for submitting a request is December 2, 2013.  Public sponsored amendments are 

requests for changes to policies with the Comprehensive Plan.  Since changes to 

policies have potential for a larger community-wide impact and may affect other 

referenced plans, the procedures to consider these changes are different than the 

private sponsored amendments.  The procedures are outlined in OHMC 

18.15.060(2).  The City has not received any public sponsored amendments to 

date. The land use change for 1000 SE City Beach street is considered a 

sponsored amendment and was added to the 2013 docket by the Development 

Services Director in accordance with OHMC 18.15.030(1)(d).  This land use 

change consideration will be continued on the 2014 docket since further 

information is needed to process this amendment. 

 

Mandated Amendments 

These are amendments mandated by the State through the Growth Management 

Act (GMA), Shoreline Management Act (SMA) or other laws.  The 2016 

Comprehensive Plan Update is a mandated amendment required by the GMA and 

the City is expected to continue work on the 2016 Update in 2014 and in 2015.  

The Shoreline Master Program was mandated by the Shoreline Management Act 

(SMA) and required the City of Oak Harbor to approve a Shoreline Master 

Program (SMP) by December 2012.  The City approved a SMP in 2012 and 

forwarded it for review to the Washington Department of Ecology (DOE).  As 

mentioned earlier, the SMP is being adopted separately and its adoption will be 

considered an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan in accordance with RCW 

90.58.050.   The Capital Improvements Plan will also be updated in 2014 and is 

considered a mandated amendment.  Mandated amendments are automatically 

given a Priority A in accordance to OHMC 18.15.050 (4). 

 

Discretionary Amendments 

As described in OHMC 18.15.050(3)(c), these amendments are added to the 

annual docket to proactively add, amend, revise, delete or further goals and 

policies in the Comprehensive Plan. Discretionary items can be added to the 

docket by boards, commissions, city council and by the director of development 

services. This is the category under which the Planning Commission can add 

items for consideration.  The current study on scenic views was added to the 

docket under this provision.  The Scenic View study is still underway and will be 

continued into 2014.     

 

The Planning Commission can discuss whether the City can benefit from a discretionary 

amendment at this time.  The marina uplands “Maritime” land use district was included 

on to the 2012 docket by Planning Commission recommendation.  The scenic view study 

that is still on the docket was also recommended by the Planning Commission.  Similar to 

past years, the Planning Commission can add items to the preliminary docket and review 

95



  

it in January before making a final recommendation to the City Council at its January 28, 

2014 meeting. 

 

Attachments:  

Attachment 1 - OHMC Chapter 18.15 Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process 

Attachment 2   -  Draft Preliminary Docket for 2014 Comprehensive Plan Update 

 

96



Oak Harbor Municipal Code  
Chapter 18.15 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENT PROCESS 

Page 1/8 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1671, passed October 1, 2013. 

Chapter 18.15 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT PROCESS 

Sections: 
18.15.010    Comprehensive plan amendment process and public participation 

program. 
18.15.020  Applicability. 
18.15.030  Responsibility. 
18.15.040  Amendment process and schedule. 
18.15.050  Docket. 
18.15.060  Sponsored amendments. 
18.15.070  Preliminary docket review criteria. 
18.15.080  Annual amendment decision criteria. 
18.15.090  Public participation – Notice provisions. 
18.15.100  Public participation program. 
18.15.110  Technical advisory group. 
18.15.120  Appeals. 

18.15.010 Comprehensive plan amendment process and public participation 
program.  

This chapter establishes the authority, process, format, and criteria by which the 
comprehensive plan may be amended in accordance with Chapter 36.70A RCW. This 
chapter also establishes the city’s public participation program as required by RCW 
36.70A.140. (Ord. 1565 § 2, 2009). 

18.15.020 Applicability. 
(1) This chapter shall apply to updates, amendments or revisions to the 

comprehensive plan that are considered by the city council no more frequently than once 
a year. At the discretion of the mayor, amendments may be considered more frequently 
than once a year for the following circumstances: 

(a) The initial adoption of a subarea plan that does not modify the general vision, 
goals and policies of the comprehensive plan; 

(b) The adoption or amendment of a shoreline master program under the 
procedures set forth in Chapter 90.58 RCW; 

(c) The amendment of the capital facilities element of a comprehensive plan that 
occurs concurrently with the adoption or amendment of the city budget. 

(2) Although sometimes referred to as the annual docket, nothing in this chapter shall 
be deemed as requiring that amendments be undertaken every year. (Ord. 1565 § 3, 
2009). 

18.15.030 Responsibility. 
(1) The director of development services shall have the responsibility to: 

(a) Administer this chapter. 
(b) Establish application and administrative procedures that may also include fee 

collection, refunds, etc. 

ATTACHMENT 1

97



Oak Harbor Municipal Code  
Chapter 18.15 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENT PROCESS 

Page 2/8 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1671, passed October 1, 2013. 

(c) Review the applications and make a determination of completeness for 
inclusion in the preliminary docket for planning commission review. 

(d) Place amendments on the preliminary docket for planning commission and city 
council consideration. 

(e) Make a recommendation to the planning commission and the city council on the 
annual docket and work program. 

(2) The planning commission shall have the responsibility to: 
(a) Review proposed amendments to the comprehensive plan that are included in 

the annual preliminary docket. 
(b) Hold a public hearing, deliberate, and make recommendations to the city 

council on the said annual preliminary docket.  
(c) Place items, as determined by majority vote, on the preliminary docket for city 

council consideration.  
(d) Review and study proposed amendments to the comprehensive plan that are 

included in the city council-approved annual docket for each year and hold a public 
hearing, deliberate, and make recommendations to the city council on said proposals. 

(3) The city council shall have the responsibility to: 
(a) Review each proposal on the preliminary docket to amend the comprehensive 

plan and make a final decision that results in establishing the planning commission’s 
annual docket work program for each year. 

(b) Place items, as determined by majority vote, on the annual docket. 
(c) Hold a public hearing and make a final decision on the amendments pursuant to 

this section after the planning commission has provided a recommendation to the city 
council. (Ord. 1565 § 4, 2009). 

18.15.040 Amendment process and schedule. 
The comprehensive plan shall be amended pursuant to this chapter, no more 

frequently than once a year as part of the amendment cycle established in this chapter, 
except as provided in OHMC 18.15.020. 

(1) The public shall be made aware of the deadline to submit proposed amendments 
to the comprehensive plan by means of two publications in the local newspaper of 
general circulation in the city, with the first notice published at least 30 days prior to the 
deadline. 

(2) The deadline for submitting an application for amendments pursuant to this 
chapter is 5:00 p.m., December 1st of each year, or the next business day if December 
1st falls on a Saturday or Sunday. 

(3) Only applications that fulfill the requirements of OHMC 18.15.060 by the deadline 
in subsection (2) of this section shall be placed on the preliminary docket for consideration 
in the next annual amendment process. 

(4) The planning commission may recommend amendments be added to the 
preliminary docket, but such recommendation shall be made before December 1st of 
each year so that they may be published along with other proposed amendments. Only 
such amendments that have received a majority vote by the planning commission shall 
be included in the preliminary docket for consideration. 

(5) The director of development services shall review all complete applications 
submitted by the deadline set forth in subsection (2) of this section based upon the 

ATTACHMENT 1

98



Oak Harbor Municipal Code  
Chapter 18.15 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENT PROCESS 

Page 3/8 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1671, passed October 1, 2013. 

threshold criteria set forth in OHMC 18.15.070(1) and place them on the preliminary 
docket along with the discretionary and mandated items in accordance with OHMC 
18.15.050. 

(6) The director of development services shall advertise the preliminary docket in the 
local newspaper of general circulation prior to its consideration for recommendation by 
the planning commission. 

(7) The planning commission shall hold a public hearing on the preliminary docket and 
review said docket based on the criteria set forth in OHMC 18.15.070(2) and make a 
recommendation to the city council before January 31st of each year. 

(8) The city council shall hold a public hearing and review the preliminary docket and, 
after such review and deliberation, establish an annual docket before March 31st of each 
year. 

(9) The annual docket shall be advertised in the local newspaper of general 
circulation.  

(10) Proposals on the annual docket shall be open for public input throughout the 
amendment process. However, formal and informal meetings such as but not limited to 
neighborhood meetings, town hall meetings, open houses, etc., will generally be 
scheduled between August 1st of each year and September 30th of each year to provide 
consistency and predictability. Public input on the amendments shall be in accordance 
with OHMC 18.15.090. 

(11) A draft of the proposed amendments on the annual docket shall be transmitted to 
the Washington State Department of Commerce in accordance with the requirements of 
RCW 36.70A.106 not later than August 31st of each year. 

(12) The planning commission shall hold a public hearing on the proposed 
amendments in the annual docket based on the criteria set forth in OHMC 18.15.080 and 
make a recommendation on each proposal to the city council before October 31st of each 
year. 

(13) The city council shall hold a public hearing on the proposed amendments in the 
annual docket and take action on such amendments before December 31st of each year. 
(Ord. 1565 § 5, 2009). 

18.15.050 Docket. 
(1) Responsibility. The director of development services shall have responsibility to 

manage the preliminary docket as set forth in this section and assure that the process and 
schedule set forth in OHMC 18.40.040 are followed. 

(2) Format. 
(a) The docket shall not span a term of more than one year. 
(b) The items on the preliminary docket shall be categorized by the type of 

amendments as set forth in subsection (3) of this section.  
(c) Each agenda item on the preliminary docket shall be assigned a predetermined 

priority based on the criteria established in subsection (4) of this section. 
(3) Types of Amendments. 

(a) Sponsored Amendments. These are amendments that are proposed through 
the application process submitted prior to December 1st of each year for consideration in 
the annual docket. Sponsored amendments are limited to those amendments as set forth 
in OHMC 18.15.060. 

ATTACHMENT 1

99



Oak Harbor Municipal Code  
Chapter 18.15 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENT PROCESS 

Page 4/8 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1671, passed October 1, 2013. 

(b) Mandated Amendments. These amendments are proposed for the annual 
docket in response to existing and scheduled mandates from the state and the 
countywide planning policies. The director of development services shall be responsible 
for placing proposals to meet such mandates on the preliminary docket for the year in 
which the mandate requires action. 

(c) Discretionary Amendments. These amendments are added to the annual 
docket to proactively add, amend, revise, delete or further goals and policies in the 
comprehensive plan. Discretionary items can be added to the docket by boards, 
commissions or the council as established by the OHMC and by the director of 
development services. Discretionary items from boards and commissions shall be added 
to the docket only after such items have received a majority vote by said board, 
commission or council.  

(4) Prioritization. Each item on the preliminary docket shall be assigned a 
pre-determined priority by the director based on the following criteria: 

(a) Priority A – Mandated. Amendments and updates that are in response to an 
existing or scheduled mandate from the state or countywide planning policies shall 
automatically be considered during the appropriate amendment cycle. 

(b) Priority B – Sponsored. 
(i) Private amendments that are sponsored by an individual property owner or a 

group, that impact specific properties. 
(ii) Public amendments that meet the requirements set forth in OHMC 

18.15.060(2). 
(c) Priority C – Discretionary. Discretionary amendments that are generated by 

boards, commissions and the council to further the goals and policies of the 
comprehensive plan. 

(5) Approval. The city council shall establish by resolution the annual docket. The 
annual docket shall specifically apply only to the amendments listed for the current year. 
(Ord. 1565 § 6, 2009). 

18.15.060 Sponsored amendments. 
Sponsored amendments are initiated by the public through the application process. 

Sponsored amendments are classified into two categories as described below: 
(1) Private Amendments. These are applications initiated by an individual property 

owner or a group of property owners who are requesting changes that will primarily 
impact properties that they own or control. 

(a) Application Requirements. 
(i) An application form provided by the department of development services 

and completed by the applicant that includes, at minimum, the applicant’s name, address, 
contact information, property address and location, parcel number(s), existing land use 
designation, proposed land use designation and zoning designation. 

(ii) A map of the property clearly showing the subject properties and its 
surrounding context. 

(iii) A narrative clearly stating the proposal and what the amendment is 
attempting to accomplish. 

(iv) A completed environmental checklist, if required by the director. 
(v) An application processing fee in accordance with RCW 82.02.020. 

ATTACHMENT 1

100



Oak Harbor Municipal Code  
Chapter 18.15 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENT PROCESS 

Page 5/8 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1671, passed October 1, 2013. 

(2) Public Amendments. These are applications initiated by the public requesting 
changes, additions, or updates to elements, maps, data, goals and policies that have an 
areawide or citywide significance. Since these requests can have an impact to the 
community at large, the application requirements vary from the private amendments. 

(a) Application Requirements. 
(i) A narrative clearly stating the proposal and what the amendment is 

attempting to accomplish. 
(ii) Identification, address and contact information of the lead person or group 

initiating the proposed amendment. 
(iii) Identify the goals and policies within the comprehensive plan that are 

proposed to be amended. 
(iv) Proposed new or replacement language. 
(v) Identify goals and policies that support the proposed amendment. 
(vi) Supporting studies or findings that justify the proposed amendments. 
(vii) A petition supporting the proposed amendment that includes the 

signatures and names and addresses of one of the following: 
(A) No less than 250 residents or property owners of the city and its urban 

growth area; or  
(B) Sixty percent of the property owners impacted by the proposed 

amendments. 
(viii) An application processing fee is waived for public amendments. (Ord. 

1565 § 7, 2009). 

18.15.070 Preliminary docket review criteria. 
(1) Applications. The director of development services shall review all complete 

applications submitted by the deadline set forth in OHMC 18.15.040 and make a decision 
whether each application should be placed on the preliminary docket based upon the 
following criteria: 

(a) The application is complete and all relevant information in accordance with the 
requirements of OHMC 18.15.060(1)(a) or (2)(a) has been provided. 

(b) The application was submitted by the deadline established in OHMC 
18.15.040. 

(c) The correct application processing fee has been paid in full by the deadline 
established in OHMC 18.15.040.  

(2) The Preliminary Docket. The planning commission will review the proposed 
amendments on the preliminary docket and make a recommendation to the city council. 
Recommendations on whether agenda items shall be included in the annual docket 
should be based on one or more of the following criteria: 

(a) The proposed amendments are consistent with the Growth Management Act 
and the countywide planning policies. 

(b) The proposal does not appear to contradict other elements, goals and policies 
within the comprehensive plan. 

(c) The proposal will implement or further existing goals and policies in the 
comprehensive plan.  

(d) The proposal would correct an inconsistency within or make a clarification to a 
provision of the comprehensive plan. 

ATTACHMENT 1

101



Oak Harbor Municipal Code  
Chapter 18.15 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENT PROCESS 

Page 6/8 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1671, passed October 1, 2013. 

(e) The proposed amendments have been clearly defined to determine a fairly 
accurate scope of work. 

(f) The proposed amendments respond to an expressed desire by the community. 
(g) The public interest would be best served by considering the proposal in the 

current year. (Ord. 1565 § 8, 2009). 

18.15.080 Annual amendment decision criteria. 
The planning commission shall review and the city council shall decide on all 

proposed amendments based on the following decision criteria, where applicable: 
(1) The amendment will not adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare in 

any significant way.  
(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall goals and intent of the 

comprehensive plan. 
(3) The amendment is in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the 

countywide planning policies. 
(4) The amendment addresses the needs or changing circumstances of the 

community as a whole or resolves inconsistencies in the city’s comprehensive plan. 
(5) Environmental impacts from the amendments have been addressed through 

SEPA review and/or measures have been included that reduce possible impacts. 
(6) The amendment is consistent with the land uses and growth projections which 

were the basis of the comprehensive plan or to subsequent updates to growth allocations. 
(7) The amendment is generally compatible with neighboring land uses and 

surrounding neighborhoods. 
(8) The proposed amendment accommodates new policy direction from the city 

council. 
(9) Other specific criteria that may have been identified at the beginning of the 

process. (Ord. 1565 § 9, 2009). 

18.15.090 Public participation – Notice provisions. 
(1) The public participation requirements of this chapter shall include notice 

procedures that are reasonably calculated to provide notice to property owners and other 
affected and interested individuals, tribes, government agencies, businesses, school 
districts, and organizations of proposed amendments to comprehensive plans and 
development regulation. Examples of reasonable notice provisions include: 

(a) Publishing notice in a newspaper of general circulation in the county, city, or 
general area where the proposal is located or that will be affected by the proposal; 

(b) Posting the property for site-specific proposals; 
(c) Notifying public or private groups with known interest in a certain proposal or in 

the type of proposal being considered; 
(d) Placing notices in appropriate regional, neighborhood, ethnic, or trade journals; 

and 
(e) Publishing notice in agency newsletters or sending notice to agency mailing 

lists, including general lists or lists for specific proposals or subject areas. 
(2) Changes to Proposed Amendments. 

(a) Except as otherwise provided in subsection (2)(b) of this section, if the 
legislative body for a county or city chooses to consider a change to an amendment to a 

ATTACHMENT 1

102



Oak Harbor Municipal Code  
Chapter 18.15 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENT PROCESS 

Page 7/8 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1671, passed October 1, 2013. 

comprehensive plan or development regulation, and the change is proposed after the 
opportunity for review and comment has passed under the city’s procedures, an 
opportunity for review and comment on the proposed change shall be provided before the 
council votes on the proposed change. 

(b) An additional opportunity for public review and comment is not required under 
subsection (2)(a) of this section if: 

(i) An environmental impact statement has been prepared under Chapter 
43.21C RCW for the pending resolution or ordinance and the proposed change is within 
the range of alternatives considered in the environmental impact statement; 

(ii) The proposed change is within the scope of the alternatives available for 
public comment; 

(iii) The proposed change only corrects typographical errors, corrects 
cross-references, makes address or name changes, or clarifies language of a proposed 
ordinance or resolution without changing its effect; 

(iv) The proposed change is to a resolution or ordinance making a capital 
budget decision as provided in RCW 36.70A.120; or 

(v) The proposed change is to a resolution or ordinance enacting a moratorium 
or interim control adopted under RCW 36.70A.390. (Ord. 1565 § 10, 2009). 

18.15.100 Public participation program. 
Early, continuing and widespread public participation shall be provided during the 

comprehensive plan amendment process. The public notices for comprehensive plan 
amendments shall be in accordance with OHMC 18.20.380(5) pertaining to the Type V 
review process and with OHMC 18.20.386, where applicable. In accordance with RCW 
36.70A.140, the following public participation program shall be incorporated into the 
amendment process: 

(1) Broad Dissemination of Proposals and Alternatives. 
(a) The call for proposals to amend the comprehensive plan shall be advertised in 

the local newspaper 30 days before the deadline for filing applications in accordance with 
the schedule in OHMC 18.15.040.  

(b) The preliminary docket shall be advertised in the local newspaper prior to its 
review by the planning commission. 

(c) The annual docket shall be advertised in the local newspaper after approval by 
city council. 

(2) Opportunity for Written Comment. Written comments regarding items on the 
proposed docket or the annual docket can be submitted at any time during the review 
process up to the final city council hearing.  

(3) Public Meetings After Effective Notice. All public hearings regarding 
comprehensive plan amendments shall follow the public notice provisions provided in 
OHMC 18.20.380 and 18.20.386, where applicable. 

(4) Provisions for Open Discussions, Communication Programs and Information 
Services.  The director of development services shall determine the appropriate public 
input forum to discuss items on the annual docket. Forums may include but not be limited 
to the following: 

(a) Public Meeting and Workshops. Informal at-large public gatherings to solicit 
ideas, present proposals and encourage constructive feedback. 

ATTACHMENT 1

103



Oak Harbor Municipal Code  
Chapter 18.15 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENT PROCESS 

Page 8/8 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1671, passed October 1, 2013. 

(b) Neighborhood Discussions. When a proposed amendment has a clear 
geographical interest. 

(c) Open Houses. Advertised event to display information related to the 
amendments to the public including informal discussions with staff. 

(d) Display Kiosks. Information display at general public events and venues. 
(e) Websites and Blogs. An internet-based information distribution, discussion and 

input mechanism. 
(5) Consideration of and response to comments may vary in form and may include 

letters, staff reports, responses on the web and web-based media. Written comments 
received after the final staff report on the subject amendment is prepared may not be 
responded to in writing. (Ord. 1565 § 11, 2009). 

18.15.110 Technical advisory group. 
(1) The mayor has the authority to appoint members to a technical advisory group if 

the city council approves the need for such a group and approves it as part of the annual 
docket approval process. The need for a technical advisory group shall be based on 
whether a specific amendment or amendments require: 

(a) Technical expertise; or  
(b) Scientific expertise; or  
(c) Experience in a specific or unique field; or  
(d) Input from two or more impacted groups; or  
(e) Input from two or more public/government entities; or  
(f) Any other reason not mentioned above as determined by the mayor. 

(2) The term for members on the technical advisory group is limited to the duration of 
the specific amendment for which the group was formed. (Ord. 1565 § 12, 2009). 

18.15.120 Appeals. 
Appeal of a city council decision on a comprehensive plan amendment is governed by 

state law. (Ord. 1565 § 13, 2009). 

ATTACHMENT 1

104



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

Preliminary Docket for 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

Category of 

Amendment 

Amendments Type 

of  

Amendment 

Priority 

as per 

OHMC 18. 

15.050 

Sponsored 

Amendments 

1000 SE City Beach Street – continued 

 

Deadline for private amendments is Dec 2, 2013.  

Applications received will be added to the 

preliminary docket for review. 

 Priority B 

Mandated 

Amendments 

Capital Improvements Plan update 

Annual update to the projects list, revenues and 

expenditure. 

Mandated 

RCW 

36.70A.130 

Priority A 

2016 Update to the Comprehensive Plan - 

continued 

Mandated 

RCW 

36.70A.130 

Priority A 

Discretionary 

Amendments 

Scenic View study – continued Discretionary 

 

Priority C 

 

105


	AGENDA
	MINUTES October 22, 2013
	Marijuana Related Uses – CodeAmendment Project
	Six-Year TransportationImprovement Program
	2013 Comprehensive PlanAmendments
	Comprehensive PlanAmendments – Discussion ofitems for 2014 Docket



